
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 

x 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, : 
Plaintiff, : 

v. : 
INTERNATIONAL BROTHERHOOD : 
OF TEAMSTERS, et al., : 

Defendant. : 

x 

Pursuant to Paragraph O. of the Rules of Procedures for 

Operation of the Independent Review Board ("IRB") for the 

International Brotherhood of Teamsters ("IRB Rules"), Application 

is made by the IRB for ruling by the Honorable David N. Edelstein, 

United States District Judge for the Southern District of New York, 

on the issues heard by the IRB during a hearing on November 18, 

1998, and thereafter determined, on the charge filed against 

Lawrence P. Garono ("Garono"). 

Garono was charged with knowingly associating with La 

Cosa Nostra member Lenine "Lenny" Strollo while he was a member of 

Local Union 377. Having considered the evidence, the IRB found 

that the charge against Garono was proved. As a penalty, Garono 

has been permanently barred from membership in the IBT and may not 

hereafter obtain employment, consulting or other work with the IBT 

or any IBT-affiliated entity. 

Given the IRB's determination, we do not find it 

appropriate to stay the Opinion or the penalty imposed pending 
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review by Your Honor, as we found it in the best interest of the 

IBT that Garono immediately be barred from IBT membership. 

Enclosed with the February 2, 1999, Opinion are the 
following exhibits: 

A) August 4, 1998, IRB Investigative Report 
with Chief Investigator's exhibits Ex.l-
Bx.12? 

It is respectfully requested that an Order be entered 

affirming the IRB's February 2, 1999, Opinion if Your Honor finds 

it appropriate. 

B) November 18, 1998, Garono Hearing 
Transcript with IRB's exhibits IRB Ex.1 -
IRB Ex.8. 

Frederick B. Lacey7 
Member of the 
Independent Review Board 

Dated: February 2, 1999 
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In Re: Lawrence P. Garono 
IBT Local Union 377 

x 
OPINION AND DECISION 
OF THE INDEPENDENT 
REVIEW BOARD 

x 

I* INTRODUCTION 

On August 4, 1998, the Independent Review Board ("IRB") 
forwarded an Investigative Report concerning allegations of 
wrongdoing by Local 377 member Lawrence P. Garono ("Garono") to the 
Acting IBT General President. (Exhibit A) The IRB report 
recommended that Garono be charged with bringing reproach upon the 
IBT by knowingly associating with a member of organized crime, 
Lenine Strollo, in violation of Article II, Section 2(a) and 
Article XIX, Section 7(b)(1), (2) and (9) of the IBT Constitution. 
By letter dated August 11, 1998, the IBT referred the charge 
against Garono to the IRB for adjudication. (IRB Ex. 2)^ 

On November 18, 1998, the IRB held a hearing on the 
charge against Garono in Washington, DC. Garono did not attend the 
hearing, have a representative attend or make any written 
submission to the IRB. We conclude that the evidence at the 
hearing established that Garono committed the charged offense. 

^ "IRB Ex." refers to the Independent Review Board's 
Exhibits introduced at the hearing; "Ex." refers to the Chief 
Investigator's Exhibits introduced at the hearing and "Tr." 
refers to the transcript of the hearing before the IRB on 
November 18, 1998, enclosed herewith as Exhibit B. 



II. STATEMENT OF FACTS 
A. Garono's IBT Membership 

Garono was a member of Local 377 located in Youngstown, 
Ohio. Garono filed a membership application with Local 377 on June 
19, 1990, and began paying dues to the Local on June 22, 199 0. 
(Exs. 1 and 2) Since approximately December 1997, Garono has been 
incarcerated pending trial on a federal RICO indictment which is 
discussed below. (Ex. 6 at 6)^ Nevertheless, a dues payment for 
Garono, which was made by check-off, was posted at Local 377 on 
July 14, 1998. (Ex. 2) Garono was listed as being employed at 
Garono Landscaping, Inc. ("Garono Landscaping"). (Exs. 1 and 3) 
According to Ohio public records, Ruth Garono, Garono's wife, is 
the principal of Garono Landscaping. (Ex. 7; Ex. 6 at 4; Ex. 9 at 
30) 

Garono was one of three Local 377 members reportedly 
employed at Garono Landscaping. (Ex. 3) However, according to the 
sworn examination of one employee at Garono Landscaping, the 
company employed approximately ten other individuals who were not 
Local 377 members. (Ex. 6 at 10, 23-25)^ The collective bargaining 
agreement between Local 377 and Garono Landscaping, which did not 

^ Since Garono is incarcerated, his sworn examination was 
not conducted. 

^ This employee testified that prior to Garono's 
incarceration, Garono "would pick up material and he would go 
collect money from the job sites. . . ." for Garono Landscaping. 
(Ex. 6 at 12) 
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provide for health or pension benefits through the Local, stated 

[t]he present program of insurance benefits in 
effect at the Company shall be continued in 
effect and shall remain in effect for the term 
of this Agreement, except as it may be changed 
by mutual agreement between the Company and 
the Union. 

(Ex. 8 at 5) However, according to one employee at Garono 
Landscaping, the company did not provide any health or pension 
benefits. (Ex. 6 at 9) 

B. Lenine Strollo's LCN Membership 
The Federal Bureau of Investigation ("FBI") considers 

Lenine Strollo ("Strollo") to be a member of the Pittsburgh La Cosa 
Nostra ("LCN") family. (Ex. 4 at 4) On May 2, 1990, Strollo 
entered a guilty plea to violating Title 18, United States Code, 
Section 1962(c) (RICO) and was sentenced to fourteen months 
incarceration. According to the FBI, Strollo headed a RICO 
enterprise which operated a casino, illegal gaming events, illegal 
numbers lotteries, illegal poker machines and paid bribes to local 
law enforcement officers to protect those illegal gambling 
activities. (Ex. 4 at 4) As detailed below, Garono was also 
charged and pled guilty in 1990. Strollo was released to a halfway 
house in July 1991. (Ex. 4 at 4) 

According to the FBI, "based upon reliable and credible 
information regularly relied upon by the FBI, including information 
from confidential informants of the FBI, the FBI considers Michael 
Genovese ("Genovese") to be the Boss of the Pittsburgh LCN." (Ex. 
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4 at 3)̂  According to the FBI, a reliable confidential informant 
advised the FBI that a member of the Pittsburgh LCN told the 
confidential informant that in 1987, Genovese inducted Strollo and 
Joseph Naples, Jr. ("Naples") as members into the Pittsburgh LCN 
Family. (Ex. 4 at 4)' 

Further corroborating the FBI's opinion regarding 
Strollo's LCN membership, in September 1992, a confidential 
informant advised the FBI that Strollo controlled illegal gambling 
in the Youngstovn, Ohio, area. The FBI vas also advised that 
"Strollo used associates to deliver 'tribute' from the gambling 
proceeds to Michael Genovese, head of the Pittsburgh LCN." (Ex. 4 
at 4)' 

On December 12, 1997, a federal Grand Jury indicted 
Strollo and twenty-nine other defendants, including Garono, for 
violations of Title 18, U.S.C. 1962 (c) & (d), 1955 & 2. (Ex. 4 at 
4-5) Strollo is currently incarcerated pending trial. In a 
superseding indictment dated April 1, 1998, Strollo, Garono and 

^ According to the FBI, Genovese attended the LCN meeting 
at Apalachin, New York in 1957 with John La Rocca who was the 
Boss of the Pittsburgh LCN at that time. (Ex. 4 at 3) 

^ Naples was murdered in August 1991. (Ex. 4 at 4) 

^ Angelo Lonardo ("Lonardo"), an admitted former Underboss 
of the Cleveland LCN Family and formerly in the federal witness 
protection program, advised the FBI that during the 1970's and 
early 1980's, members and associates of the Cleveland and 
Pittsburgh LCN families controlled illegal gambling in the 
Youngstown vicinity. Lonardo stated that he picked up the 
Cleveland LCN's share of the illegal gambling profits on a 
monthly basis and reported that the Cleveland Family had received 
approximately $10,000 per month as its 25% share of the 
Youngstown gambling proceeds. (Ex. 4 at 3) 
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eleven others were charged with RICO violations. (Ex. 4 at 5) 

C. Garono's Knowing Association with Lenine Strollo 

Based upon reliable and credible information regularly 
relied upon by the FBI, including information from confidential 
informants and intercepted communications, the FBI considers 
Garono, date of birth March 11, 1943, also known as "Jeep", to be 
one of Strollo's principal associates in organized crime 
activities. (Ex. 4 at 5) According to the FBI, during the 1980's, 
Garono helped to operate several of Strollo's illegal gambling 
businesses. (Ex. 4 at 5-6; Ex. 12) In May 1990, Strollo and Garono 
each pled guilty to operating an illegal gambling business (Title 
18, United States Code, Section 1955) relating to those activities. 
Garono was sentenced to twelve months and one day incarceration. 
(Ex. 4 at 6) In the April 1998 superseding indictment described 
above, Garono was described as a liaison between Strollo and others 
conducting criminal activities for the Strollo enterprise. (Ex. 4 
at 6) 

As detailed below, the evidence presented at the hearing 

showed that Garono was a participant in Strollo's illegal gambling 

activities. In addition, the evidence established a close 

relationship between Garono and LCN member Strollo. For example, 

as discussed below, Garono arranged two meetings for Strollo, 

passed on a warning to Strollo not to talk on the telephone and, at 

Strollo's behest, arranged for Garono Landscaping to do work at a 

judge's home as part of a scheme to obtain a beneficial ruling for 
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the son of Strollo's girlfriend. 

According to the FBI, a cooperating witness told the FBI 
that, "within one week after the murder" of LCN member Naples in 
August 1991, "Garono told the cooperative witness that 'they' were 
now in charge." (Ex. 4 at 7) According to the FBI, based upon the 
cooperating witness' involvement in illegal gambling with Naples, 
Strollo and Dante Strollo, the brother of Lenine Strollo, the 
cooperating witness advised the FBI that he understood Garono's 
statement to mean that the Strollos controlled illegal gambling in 
the Youngstown area. (Ex. 4 at 7) On August 29, 1995, the 
cooperating witness recorded a conversation with Michael Serrecchio 
("Serrecchio"), who was indicted with Strollo and Garono in the 
1997 RICO case. In this conversation, Serrecchio stated that he 
and Garono ran an illegal football betting operation. (Ex. 4 at 8)^ 

Garono's involvement in illegal gambling was also 
evidenced on January 29, 1995, when the FBI executed a search 
warrant in Struthers, Ohio, where a gambling operation was being 
conducted. When the FBI executed the search warrant, Garono, Dante 

Garono's involvement in a gaming event in the Cleveland 
area in June 1996 also showed his involvement in illegal 
gambling. The FBI received information from a confidential source 
that Cleveland gambling operators associated with the Cleveland 
LCN were operating gaming events with individuals from Youngstown 
under the sponsorship of the Miray Fundraising Foundation 
("Miray"), a charitable organization that conducts fundraisers 
for other charitable organizations. (Ex. 4 at 14) On June 24, 
1996, the FBI conducted a surveillance of a charitable fundraiser 
Miray operated in the Cleveland area which included gaming 
events. Garono, Sam Sirna, considered by the FBI to be "a 
Cleveland gambling operator", and James Teresi were involved in 
running the event. (Ex. 4 at 14) The FBI observed Garono and 
others unloading gaming tables from a Garono Landscaping truck on 
June 24, 1996. (Ex. 4 at 14) 
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Strollo and Sam S. Vona, Jr. ("Vorta") were present. According to 
the FBI, "Vona operates part of Strollo's gambling operation." (Ex. 

4 at 7) Vona was charged in the 1997 RICO indictment with Strollo 
and Garono. (Ex. 4 at 7-8)^ 

Based upon conversations the FBI intercepted on January 
29, 1996, it appears that Garono conveyed to Strollo a message from 
an individual named "Walt" that Strollo should not use the 
telephone. In addition, Garono arranged for "Walt" and Strollo to 
meet. According to the FBI, 

[o]n January 29, 1996 at 4:04 p.m., an 
incoming telephone call was received on the 
cellular telephone Garono used wherein a 
conversation was intercepted between Garono 
and an unknown male later determined to be 
Walt (Last Name Unknown). Walt told Garono to 
"tell my friend down there to ah, stay off the 
phone from him and, ah, you too." Walt also 
told Garono that "if your friend wants to meet 
me or see me, ah, call me and I'll make a meet 
with him." 

(Ex. 4 at 8-9) Shortly after this call, at 4:34 p.m. on January 

On January 7, 1996, the FBI executed several search 
warrants including one at Vona's home where records of a sports 
bookmaking operation were found. The agents left Vona's home at 
approximately 3:30 p.m. on January 7, 1996. (Ex. 4 at 8) Shortly 
after the execution of the search warrants, at approximately 3:36 
p.m., Garono called Joseph Serrecchio, who was later charged in 
the 1997 indictment with Strollo and Garono. (Ex. 4 at 8) 
According to the FBI, 

[d]uring this conversation, Garono told 
Joseph Serrecchio that someone had just 
called him and Garono asked "Is it ok or 
not." Joseph Serrecchio responded that 
"someone was there, yeah," "both places too," 
and "they took everything." 

(Ex. 4 at 8) According to Garono's cellular telephone bill, on 
January 7, 1996 at 3:53 p.m. a call was made to Strollo's home. 
(Ex. 4 at 8) 
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29, 1996, a telephone call was received on Garono's cellular 
telephone. During this conversation, Garono and Strollo spoke 

about the call Garono had received at 4:04 p.m. During his 
conversation with Strollo, Garono told Strollo that "Walt" had 

called him and said "be very careful." (Ex. 4 at 9-10) Garono 
further told Strollo that "Walt" "picked something up and ah where 
it's coming from he said just, I'm telling you something don't 
talk, you know, on the thing." (Ex. 4 at 9-10) 

According to the FBI, on February 14, 1996, Garono called 
Strollo and set up a meeting between Strollo and Campbell, Ohio, 
Police Chief Charles Xenakis ("Xenakis"), within an hour after an 
FBI Special Agent had contacted the Campbell Police Department, 
advised them the FBI was conducting an investigation into illegal 
gambling and requested to speak with Xenakis. (Ex. 4 at 11)' The 

agent was told that Xenakis was not at work. A message was left 

requesting that Xenakis call the agent when Xenakis returned to 
work. (Ex. 4 at 11) 

On February 14, 1996 at 11:51 a.m., shortly after the FBI 

Special Agent contacted the Campbell Police Department, a telephone 

call was received on Garono's cellular phone. During this 

conversation, the caller, whom the FBI believed to be Xenakis, 

told Garono "that there was a little problem" 
and that it was imperative that he see "our 
friend," "preferably discretely." Garono said 
he would try to set up a meeting and then call 
the unidentified male who said he was at home. 

^ Between 10:30 a.m. and 11:00 a.m. on February 14, 1996, 
an TBI Special Agent contacted the Campbell, Ohio, Police 
Department to speak with Xenakis. (Ex. 4 at 11) 
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(Ex. 4 at 11-12) On February 14, 1996 at 11:54 a.m., a call was 

made from Garono's cellular phone to Strollo's home. According to 

the FBI, 
Garono told Strollo that "you know that kid 
that came with me last time to see you," he 
"needs to see you, very urgent." Strollo 
agreed to meet the individual and arrangements 
were made to have "Skinny" take the individual 
to meet Strollo that evening. 

(Ex. 4 at 12) Shortly after Garono's conversation with Strollo, at 
11:56 a.m. on February 14, 1996, a call was made from Garono's 

cellular phone to a telephone subscribed to by Xenakis. During 
this conversation, Garono told the male answerer, whom the FBI 
believed to.be Xenakis, to "get Skinny this evening" and when the 

male asked what time, Garono said "I told him and he said fine, 
it's up to you." (Ex. 4 at 12) 

In addition to arranging a meeting between Strollo and 
Police Chief Xenakis, the hearing evidence showed that Garono spoke 
with Strollo about having Garono Landscaping do work at a judge's 

home. According to the FBI, several conversations over Strollo's 

telephone and a conversation between Strollo and Raymond Hertz 

("Hertz"), who is the son of Strollo's girlfriend, showed that 

Strollo and Hertz were talking about trying to influence a judge in 

a pending court case involving Hertz, by performing landscaping 

work free for the judge, with the hope that it might lead to a 
favorable ruling in a matter before him. (Ex. 4 at 13) 

According to the FBI, the following conversation between 

Garono and Strollo related to that scheme. On May 29, 1996 at 9:17 

p.m., a telephone call was made from Garono's cellular telephone. 



According to the FBI, 
[d]uring this conversation, Strollo asked 
Garono whether he remembered...[the judge]. 
...Garono replied that he did. ...Garono... 
told Strollo that he would do the yard work 
the next day... . 

(Ex. 4 at 13) The FBI determined that on May 31, 1996, two days 
after this conversation between Garono and Strollo, Garono 

Landscaping performed landscaping work at the judge's home. (Ex. 

4 at 13)i° 
In addition to the above conversations with Strollo, 

Garono also contacted Strollo on at least five other occasions. 
For example, on May 2, 1996, at 11:12 a.m., a call was made to 
Strollo's home on Garono's cellular phone. (Ex. 4 at 12) On at 
least three occasions in July 1996, Garono called Strollo and 
arranged to meet with Strollo. On July 17, 1996, at approximately 
10:40 a.m., on July 20, 1996, at approximately 11:34 a.m. and on 
July 26, 1996, at approximately 11:32 a.m., Garono telephoned 
Strollo and arranged to meet with him. (Ex. 4 at 15) Also in July 
1996, at approximately 2:56 p.m. on July 10, 1996, a conversation 
was intercepted at Strollo's home between Garono and Strollo. (Ex. 
4 at 15) 

Garono was also intercepted talking to Strollo at least 
twice in September 1996. For example, on September 17, 1996, at 
9:51 a.m., a conversation was intercepted at Strollo's residence 

We do not suggest that the judge was guilty of any 
wrongdoing nor do we have any knowledge that the judge requested 
his yard work be done without charge, or that it was done without 
charge. 
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between Strollo and Garono. (Ex. 4 at 16) In addition, on 
September 27, 1996, at 10:57 a.m., a telephone call was made from 
Garono's cellular telephone to Strollo's home, during which Strollo 
and Garono made arrangements for Garono to go to Strollo's house. 
(Ex. 4 at 16) Later that same day, at approximately 11:25 a.m., a 
conversation was intercepted at Strollo's residence between Strollo 
and Garono. (Ex. 4 at 16) 

In addition to the interceptions, the FBI observed 
Strollo and Garono together on June 12, 1996, at the Grandview 
Restaurant located in Canfield, Ohio. At approximately 12:01 p.m. 
Garono and Strollo were seen together in the rear parking lot of 
the restaurant. Shortly thereafter, at 12:07 p.m., Strollo and 
Garono were observed sitting together inside the restaurant where 
they were joined by an unidentified man. At approximately 12:55 
p.m. Garono left the restaurant. (Ex. 4 at 13-14) 

Intercepted conversations also showed that Garono was 
involved in trying to assist Leo Connelly ("Connelly"), who had 
ties to Strollo and was released from prison in June 1996, to get 
work in the construction industry through Local 377." Anthony 
Antoun ("Antoun") was the chief steward for the Local 377 
construction industry. (Ex. 9 at 10) According to the FBI, on July 
16, 1996, a telephone call was received on Garono's cellular phone 
during which Garono spoke with Bobby Poghen ("Poghen"). (Ex. 4 at 

In a February 1998 article in The Vindicator, a 
Youngstown newspaper, Connelly was quoted describing himself as a 
close friend of Strollo. (Ex. 5) 
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15)^ According to the FBI, during this conversation, 

Poghen told Garono that he was looking for 
Tony [believed to be Tony Antoun, a member of 
Local 377 and a steward in the construction 
industry]. Poghen further stated that he was 
trying to get a job for his son Bobby. Poghen 
stated that he [believed to be Antoun] got a 
job for Leo Connelly when Connelly was 
released from jail. Garono and Poghen agreed 
to meet for lunch and discuss it soon. 

(Ex. 4 at 16) According to the FBI, 

[o]n July 31, 1996 at 9:05 a.m. a telephone 
call was received on Garono's cellular phone 
during which Poghen answered a page from 
Garono made two minutes earlier and they 
agreed to meet in 10 minutes. At 9:34 a.m. an 
outgoing telephone call from the cellular 
phone Garono used was made to Antoun. During 
this conversation, Garono put Poghen on the 
telephone. Poghen thanked Antoun for helping 
get Leo [Connelly] a job. Poghen also asked 
Antoun if Connelly had given him a card for an 
individual that he was trying to help out with 
his blacktop business. Antoun stated that he 
had received the card. 

(Ex. 4 at 16) During his sworn examination, Antoun testified that 
he helped Connelly get a job after Connelly was released from 

According to the FBI, 

Poghen, along with two others, including Sam 
Scaffidi, pled guilty to a 1982 Federal 
indictment charging them with conspiracy and 
illegal firearms possession in connection 
with a failed June 1982 robbery of Long's 
Greenhouse in Youngstown, Ohio. Poghen was 
sentenced to 15 years in prison. Scaffidi, 
who was sentenced to 17 years, died in 
prison, and was considered by the FBI to be a 
close associate to the Pittsburgh LCN family. 

(Ex. 4 at 15-16) 
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prison. (Ex. 9 at 18)" On August 20, 1996, dues were posted for 
Connelly at Local 377. (Ex. 10) 

The evidence established that Garono brought reproach 

upon the IBT by knowingly associating with a member of the 

Pittsburgh LCN. Given the number and the nature of Garono's 

contacts with Strollo, the hearing evidence established that 
Garono, while a member of Local 377, purposefully associated with 
Strollo who, the hearing evidence established, was a member of the 
Pittsburgh LCN. The FBI's expert opinion that Strollo was a 
Pittsburgh LCN member was corroborated by information from 
confidential informants, wiretap interceptions and Strollo's 
conviction for illegal gambling. 

The test for knowing association that is violative of the 
Consent Decree is now settled: 

the contacts in question are purposeful and 
not incidental or fleeting. Such contacts may 
be shown in either a business or social 
context. . . . In determining whether the 
Investigations Officer has sustained his 
burden of proving a prohibited association, 
the focus will be placed on the nature and not 
the number of contacts in question, (citations 
omitted) 

Investigations Officer v. Senese. et al., Decision of the 
Independent Administrator, slip op. at 35-37, aff'd, United States 
Y. IBT, 745 F. Supp. 908 (S.D.N.Y. 1990), aff'd. United States v. 
IBI, 941 F. 2d 1292 (2d Cir. 1991), cert, denied, 112 S. Ct. 1161 

Antoun, however, denied that he spoke with Garono or 
Poghen about getting Connelly a job. (Ex. 9 at 38-39) Antoun 
testified that he knew Connelly and Poghen were friends but that 
Poghen never asked him to get a job for Connelly. (Ex. 9 at 38-
39) 
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(1992). In the instant case, Garono played a significant role in 

running Strollo's illegal gambling operations. In 1990, both 

Garono and Strollo were charged with federal gambling violations 

and both pled guilty. Currently, both Garono and Strollo are-

incarcerated pending trial on a federal RICO indictment. See p.4, 

supra. 
In 1996, while Garono was an IBT member, the FBI 

intercepted at least eleven conversations between Garono and 
Strollo. (Ex. 4) During one conversation, on January 29, 1996, 
Garono called Strollo and passed on a warning not to talk on the 
telephone. In another conversation, on May 29, 1996, Garono and 
Strollo discussed having Garono's landscaping company do work for 
a judge as part of a scheme to obtain a favorable ruling for an 
individual whose case was before that judge. According to the FBI, 
Garono Landscaping did landscaping work at the judge's home two 
days after Garono's conversation with Strollo. In three 
conversations intercepted in July 1996, on July 17, 20 and 26, 
1996, Garono and Strollo made arrangements to meet. In addition, 
during two conversations with Strollo, on January 29 and February 
14, 1996, Garono made arrangements for Strollo to meet a third 
party. 

Garono also appears to have assisted a convicted felon, 
Leo Connelly, who had ties to Strollo, to get work through Local 
377 in the construction industry. In July 1996, Garono and another 
individual contacted Antoun, a Local 377 member and the chief 
steward for the Local's construction industry, in order to help 
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Connelly, who had recently been released from prison, obtain a job 
through Local 377. Antoun admitted helping Connelly get work as a 
Local 377 member in the construction industry.*" 

Garono's knowledge of Strollo's LCN ties can be inferred 
from the nature and length of their relationship. The evidence set 
forth in the FBI Declaration established a close relationship 
between Strollo and Garono. The gambling activities were a strong 
indication of Garono's knowledge of Strollo's organized crime 
position. Moreover, since at least 1982, there have been several 
news reports in the Youngstown area describing Strollo's LCN ties. 
(Ex. 11) 

A further test of knowledge of organized crime ties that 
are violative of the Consent Decree is: 

[i]n the absence of direct evidence of 
knowledge of the organized crime ties of an 
associate . . . such knowledge may be inferred 
from the duration and the quality of the 
association, (citations omitted) 

Investigations Officer v. Senese, et al., Decision of the 

Independent Administrator, slip op. at 37, supra. Given Garono's 

close relationship with Strollo as evident from the surveillance 

evidence and wiretap interceptions as well as the publicity 

surrounding Strollo's LCN ties, Garono's knowledge of Strollo's 

organized crime ties can be inferred. 

^ However, Antoun denied that Garono was involved in 
assisting Connelly to get work. 
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III. CONCLUSION 

Based upon the foregoing, the hearing evidence 
established that Lawrence Garono brought reproach upon the IBT and 
violated the IBT Constitution by knowingly associating with a 
member of Organized Crime. Accordingly, Garono is permanently 
barred from holding membership in or any position with the IBT, or 
any IBT-affiliated entity, in the future. Garono also may not 
hereafter obtain employment, consulting or other work with the IBT 
or any IBT-affiliated entity. 

Members of the 
Independent Review Board 

William H. Webster 

DATED 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 

-X 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

Plaintiffs, 

-v-

INTERNATIONAL BROTHERHOOD OF 
TEAMSTERS, et al.. 

Defendants. 

MEMORANDUM & ORDER 
88 Civ. 4486 (DNE) 

-X 

EDELSTEIN, District Judge: 

WHEREAS on August 4, 1998, the Independent Review Board 

("IRB") issued an Investigative Report (the "IRB Report") and 

forwarded it to the General Executive Board of the International 

Brotherhood of Teamsters ("IBT") recommending charges against 

Local 377 member Lawrence P. Garono ("Garono") for bringing 

reproach upon the IBT by knowingly associating with a member of 

organized crime, in violation of Article II, Section 2(a) and 

Article XIX, Section 7(b)(1), (2) and (9) of the IBT 

Constitution; and 

WHEREAS by letter dated August 11, 1998, Tom Sever, Acting 

General President of the IBT, advised the IRB he had adopted and 

filed the recommended charges against Garono and that the charges 



were referred back to the IRB for adjudication; and 

WHEREAS on August 17, 1998, at the direction of the IRB, 

John J. Cronin, Jr., the IRB administrator, notified Garono by 

UPS overnight letter that a hearing was scheduled for September 

10, 1998, at 10:00 a.m., at the offices of the IRB, located at 

444 North Capitol Street, N.W., Suite 528, Washington, D.C., and 

also gave Garono the opportunity, in the alternative, to have the 

hearing in Cleveland, Ohio, if he were to reply within five days 

stating his preference; and 

WHEREAS after Garono failed to notify the IRB of his 

preference, the IRB located him at the Euclid City Jail in 

Euclid, Ohio, and forwarded to him by letter dated August 31, 

1998, a copy of the notice of hearing, along with the IRB Report 

and exhibits, and advised Garono that the hearing was postponed 

until further notice; and 

WHEREAS by letter dated September 14, 1998, the IRB gave 

notice to Garono that the hearing was rescheduled for November 

18, 1998, at 10:00 a.m., in Washington, D.C., and informing 

Garono that he may file any materials for his defense in writing 
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if he was unable to attend the hearing; and 

WHEREAS on November 18, 1998, the noticed hearing went 

forward before the IRB and Garono did not attend and was not 

represented at the hearing; and 

WHEREAS the hearing proceeded with testimony taken from 

Federal Bureau of Investigation ("FBI") Special Agent Ronald E. 

Helmick in which Special Agent Helmick testified that the 

information contained in his declaration was true with one 

amendment; and 

WHEREAS Special Agent Helmick's declaration states that the 

FBI considers Lenine Strollo ("Strollo") to be a member of the 

Pittsburgh La Cosa Nostra ("LCN"), and further states that the 

FBI considers Lawrence P. Garono ("Garono") to be one of 

Strollo's key associates in organized crime activities; and 

WHEREAS having reviewed the IRB's February 2, 1998 Opinion 

and Decision and all accompanying exhibits, including Special 

Agent Helmick's declaration, this Court finds that the charge 

against Garono has been proven by a preponderance of the 
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evidence; and 

WHEREAS having reviewed the sanctions imposed by the IRB, 

this Court finds that the sanctions are proportionate to the 

severity of the misconduct of which Garono was guilty; and 

WHEREAS accordingly, this Court finds that Application LXII 

of the IRB should be granted; 

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED THAT Application LXII of the 

Independent Review Board regarding the charges and sanctions 

imposed against Lawrence P. Garono is GRANTED. 

SO ORDERED 

DATED: New York, New York 
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